
 

Spelthorne Borough Council, Council Offices, Knowle Green 
 
Staines-upon-Thames TW18 1XB 
 
www.spelthorne.gov.uk customer.services@spelthorne.gov.uk Telephone 01784 451499 
 

 
 
 
 
 Please reply to:  

Contact: Christeen Abee 
Service: Committee Services 
Direct line: 01784 446224 
E-mail: c.abee@spelthorne.gov.uk 
Date: 7 December 2022 

 
 

Notice of meeting 
 
 

Licensing Committee  
 
 

Date: 

 

Thursday, 15 December 2022 

Time: 

 

7.00 pm 

Place: 

 

Council Chamber,  Council Offices, Knowle Green, Staines-upon-Thames TW18 
1XB 

 
To the members of the Licensing Committee 
 
Councillors: 
 
R.W. Sider BEM (Chairman) 
C.L. Barratt 
C. Bateson 
S. Buttar 
J.T.F. Doran 
 

S.A. Dunn (Vice-
Chairman) 
K.M. Grant 
A.C. Harman 
K. Howkins 
T. Lagden 
 

O. Rybinski 
V. Siva 
B.B. Spoor 
 

Councillors are reminded to notify Committee Services of any Gifts and Hospitality offered 
to you since the last Council meeting so that these may be entered in the Gifts and 
Hospitality Declaration book.  

http://www.spelthorne.gov.uk/
mailto:customer.services@spelthorne.gov.uk


 
 

 

 

 AGENDA  

  Page nos. 

1.   Apologies and Substitutes  

 To receive any apologies for absence and notification of substitutions. 
 

 

2.   Minutes 3 - 4 

 To agree the minutes of the meeting held on 18 October 2022 as a 
correct record. 
 

 

3.   Disclosures of Interest  

 To receive any disclosures of interest from Councillors in accordance 
with the Council's Code of Conduct for Members.  
 

 

4.   Review and Setting of Fees & Charges for the Licensing of 
Hackney Carriages, Private Hire and Private Hire Operators 

5 - 16 

 To consider agreement of the proposed taxi and private hire fees and 
charges. 
 

 

 



 
 

 
 

Minutes of the Licensing Committee 
18 October 2022 

 
 

Present: 
  
  

 
Councillors: 
 

C.L. Barratt 

C. Bateson 

S. Buttar 

 

J.T.F. Doran 

S.A. Dunn 

K.M. Grant 

 

A.C. Harman 

K. Howkins 

B.B. Spoor 

 

 
 

Apologies: Councillors Councillor R.W. Sider BEM, Councillor O. Rybinski 
and Councillor V. Siva 

 
 

4/22   Minutes  
 

It was moved by Councillor Bateson and seconded by Councillor Grant that 
Councillor Sandra Dunn be appointed as Chairman for the meeting in the 
absence of the Chairman and Vice-Chairman. 
 
The Committee resolved to appoint Councillor Sandra Dunn as Chairman for 
the meeting. 
 
The minutes of the meetings held on 22 July 2020 and 12 July 2022 were 
agreed as a correct record. 
 

5/22   Disclosures of Interest  
 

There were none. 
 

6/22   Review and Setting of Fees & Charges for the Licensing of 
Hackney Carriages, Private Hire and Private Hire Operators  
 

The Principal Licensing Officer presented the proposed fees and charges for 
the Licensing of Hackney Carriages, Private Hire and Private Hire Operators 
prior to undergoing a consultation period. She provided a summary of how the 
fees had been calculated and the anticipated change to annual income the 
proposed changes would generate. 
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 2



 
Licensing Committee, 18 October 2022 - continued 

 

 
 

The Principal Licensing Officer explained that the report required two 
alterations under the proposed fees: the “New Driver Private Hire (3 Year)” 
fee should be £376.81, and the “Renewal Driver Private Hire (3 year)” fee 
should be moved from the 1 year fee column to the 3 year fee column. 
 
The Committee noted the calculations had taken the rise in cost-of-living 
expenses into consideration, and though some of the fees had reduced there 
would still be a slight increase to annual income. The Committee 
acknowledged the fees were in line with neighbouring authorities but could not 
be directly compared due differing practices between authorities.  
 
The Committee discussed the proposed options and agreed that keeping the 
wheelchair accessible vehicle discount would provide an incentive for 
operators to utilise accessible vehicles. 
 
The Committee resolved to agree to consult with the taxi trade on the 
proposed fees and charges keeping the wheelchair accessible vehicle 
discount. 
 

7/22   Committee Work Programme  
 

The Committee received a verbal update from the Senior Solicitor on future 
committee business. 
 
The Senior Solicitor provided an overview of policies would be reviewed in 
2023 and the estimated dates for presentation to the Committee. 
 
The Committee resolved to note the update on future committee business. 
 

Page 4



 

 
 

Licensing Committee  

 

15 December 2022 

1. Summary of the report 

1.1 In accordance with Section 70 (3) of the Local Government (Miscellaneous 
Provisions) Act 1976, the Council is required to undertake a statutory 28-day 
consultation when variations to operators and vehicle licence fees are proposed. 

1.2 The proposed fees were considered by the Licensing Committee and were 
approved for consultation purposes at a meeting on 18 October 2022.  These 
fees have been set out, based on estimated officer time, and including permitted 
costs. The proposed fees are attached at Appendix A. 

1.3 An advert was published in the Surrey Advertiser on 28 October 2022 to notify 
the public of the new proposed fees.  The advert was also advertised at the 
Council Offices and on the Council’s website.  

1.4 All licence holders were contacted by email on 28 October 2022 to seek their 
views on the proposed hackney carriage and private hire licence fees.   

1.5 The last day for comments on the consultation was 25 November 2022. 
 

2. Objections following statutory consultation 

2.1 The Licensing Authority has received three objections from licence holders for 
consideration by the committee.  These are attached at Appendix B. No 

Title Review and Setting of Fees & Charges for the licensing of 
Hackney Carriages, Private Hire, and Private Hire Operators  

Purpose of the report To make a decision 

Report Author Lucy Catlyn, Principal Licensing Officer 

Ward(s) Affected All Wards 

Exempt No 

Exemption Reason Not applicable 

Corporate Priority Recovery, Service Delivery 

Recommendations 

 

It is recommended that:  

Members consider the proposed fees and either  

a) Confirm agreement with the proposed taxi and private hire 
fees and charges set out at Appendix A; or 

b) Agree amended fees following consideration of 
consultation feedback 

Reason for 
Recommendation 

In accordance with the Constitution, Committee is asked to 
approve the Licensing Fees for Taxi and Private Hire Licensing. 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



 
 

comments or objections were received from the public.  A summary of the 
objections received is set out below: 

Objection One  The respondent states that they believe the fee is in the 
best interest of the Council only and disregards the 
financial effects this has on taxi drivers.   

 The respondent states that the Council have not 
increased the hackney carriage meter tariffs in the 
current financial climate.   

 The respondent states there is no taxi sign for the main 
side of Staines-Upon-Thames railway station. 

 There is a lack of work and a suggestion that the Council 
is not giving taxi jobs.   

Objection Two This is the same as objection one. 

Objection Three The respondent states that the Council have not increased 
the hackney carriage meter tariffs and the rise in fees since 
a tariff change in 2015. 

 

2.2 In response to the trade’s request for a fare chart review. Section 65 of the Local 
Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 permits the Council to fix the 
fares.  The Licensing Authority will be reviewing the hackney carriage fare tariffs 
in 2023.  This will be brought to the Licensing Committee and public/trade 
consultation. 

2.3 The Licensing Authority has contacted South West Trains by email to enquire 
about the missing taxi signage at the train station.  No reply was received to our 
communications.  Licensing Officers have since visited the station and they have 
agreed to reinstate the signage.  There has been no timescale supplied.  The 
land is privately owned. 

2.4 The Licensing Authority’s primary role is to protect the public.  Drivers can take 
bookings within the remit of their licence and are not restricted to only work for 
one operator.  For clarification purposes, the Council has not received an 
Operator licence application from Uber.  

2.5 Fees for vehicle and operators’ licences – the Local Government (Miscellaneous 
Provisions) Act 1976 Section 70 (5) states “if objection is duly made as aforesaid 
and is not withdrawn, the district council shall set a further date, not later than 
two months after the first specified date, on which the variation shall come into 
force with or without modification as decided by the district council after 
consideration of the objections”. 

2.6 Objections have been made and not withdrawn.  Therefore, the Committee must 
consider the objections and set a further date, on which the fees shall come into 
force, with or without modifications, no later than 25 January 2023.  

 
3. Options analysis and proposal 

3.1 The Committee may after consideration of the objections: 

Page 6



 
 

a) Make no changes to the proposed fees and approve and set a date for 
the new fees to come into force. (This is the preferred option and 
keeps the wheelchair discount). 

b) Make modification to the proposed fees and approve and set a date for 
the new fees to come into force.  
 

4. Financial Implications 

4.1 Government policy guidance recommends that licence fees are based on full 
cost recovery, thereby ensuring that taxpayers are not subsiding licensed trades.  
Lower fees would mean that the Council is not recovering its costs associated 
with the provision of hackney carriages, private hire, and private hire operator 
licensing, and the budget would be in deficit. Higher fees may result in a profit, 
and this would be potentially unlawful.  

4.2 The Licensing Committee agreed at the meeting on 18 October 2022 not to 
charge for all aspects of regulatory work or for Licensing Sub Committee 
hearings undertaken by the Licensing Service for this financial year due.  This 
was owing to the likely cost of living impact on the taxi trade and the reduced 
income they received during the COVID-19 pandemic. 

4.3 For the financial year 2023/24 it is proposed that a proportion of the costs for any 
Licensing Sub-Committees held for Hackney Carriage and Private Hire are 
included in the application fee for renewals and new drivers, together with a 
proportion of costs for the regulatory work and amendments to the Taxi and 
Private Hire Licensing Policy.  This will allow for a stepped increase of taxi fees 
in subsequent years. 

 
5. Legal Implications  

5.1 The Council have fully reviewed the costs associated with granting, renewing, 
and maintaining compliance in line with legislation and case law.   
 

5.2 Section 53 of the Act specifies that the costs related to issue and administration 
of licences can be recovered in driver’s licence fees. In respect of vehicle and 
operator licences. 
 

5.3 Section 70 specifies that the reasonable cost of inspecting vehicles, the 
reasonable cost of providing hackney carriage stands and any reasonable 
administrative costs in connection with the foregoing and with the control and 
supervision of hackney carriages and private hire vehicles can be included in the 
fees.  
 

5.4 The legislation does not require the Council to make a precise calculation so as 
to arrive at an income which exactly meets the cost of the administration of the 
various licences. Councils are required, however, to take a reasonable and 
proportionate approach and should aim to set a fee level that is sufficient to 
cover the cost but not make a surplus.  
 

5.5 Taxi fees are required by law to be cost neutral thereby reducing the risk of local 
tax payers subsidising businesses, and thus ensuring that businesses do not pay 
more than they should.  
 

Page 7



 
 

5.6 The fixing of fees proposed in the attached fee schedules at Appendix B for is a 
function of the Licensing Committee as laid out in the Local Authorities 
(Functions and Responsibilities) (England) Regulations 2000.  
 

5.7 The judgment in the Court of Appeal case of R (app Rehman) v Wakefield City 
Council [2020] R.T.R. 11 (2019) determined that “administration” can include the 
cost of enforcement or compliance against licensed drivers. The same principles 
also apply to the enforcement of vehicles and operators.  
 

5.8 Licence fees cannot, however, be used for enforcement activities against 
unlicensed operators and it is therefore necessary for the cost of enforcement of 
unlicensed drivers, vehicles and operators to be met out of general funds. This 
work forms a very small part of the overall work of the taxi licensing service with 
the vast majority of activity directed at the licensed trade.  
 

5.9 The general methodology behind this review of fees has been determined by the 
Act and the document ‘Open for business: Local Government Association (LGA) 
guidance on locally set licence fees’. This guidance has been used as a starting 
point only because it was last revised in June 2017 and so does not take into 
account the decision in the recent Wakefield case in relation to enforcement 
costs  
 

5.10 The LGA guidance acknowledges that the EU Services Directive, applicable to 
most forms of licensing, does not apply in the case of taxi and private hire 
licensing but the principles, however, remain helpful. The core principles are that 
fees should be non-discriminatory; justified; proportionate; clear; objective; made 
public in advance; transparent; and accessible.  
 

5.11 The LGA guidance draws attention to two important decisions in relation to fees. 
The first is R (Cummings) v Cardiff [2014] which rules that the charges within a 
licensing regime for different categories of taxi licence should be accounted 
entirely separately and should not subsidise each other.  
 

5.12 The second is Hemming v Westminster. Strictly speaking this does not apply to 
taxi and private hire licensing as this case proceeded under the auspices of the 
EU Services Directive from which transport services are specifically excluded. 
The principle ruling was that application fees relate solely to the costs of 
authorisation i.e. reviewing the application and granting or refusing it. Successful 
applicants should subsequently be charged an additional fee relating to the costs 
of on-going maintenance and enforcement. Whilst this is not necessarily 
applicable to taxi and private hire licensing it would be prudent to bear in mind 
the principle when considering the requests to refund application fees for 
unsuccessful applicants. 

 
6. Risk considerations 

6.1 Fees may be challenged in the High Court (Judicial Review) or by complaint to 
the Local Auditor.  It is therefore important that the process the Council follows is 
fair, open, and transparent.   
 

7. Procurement considerations 

7.1 There are no procurement considerations. 

Page 8



 
 

 
8. Other considerations 

8.1 There are none. 
 
9. Equality and Diversity 

9.1 If the Council decides to remove the discount for wheelchair assessable vehicles 
it may impact on the number of vehicles which are licensed as a financial 
incentive is offered.  If this was to be taken away, then it could have an impact 
on equality. It is recommended therefore that the wheelchair accessible vehicle 
discount is retained.   
 

9.2 Sustainability/Climate Change Implications.  

9.3 Taxi and Private Hire vehicles help reduce the need for private ownership of 
cars.  They also play a pivotal role in transporting children to/from school and 
supporting the night-time economy. They can also help reduce emissions to the 
atmosphere. 

 
10. Timetable for implementation 

10.1 Following objections, a Licensing Committee has been convened.  Licensing 
Committee to determine when fees take effect and to what amount.  However, 
the fees must be implemented on or before 25 January 2023. 
 

11. Contact 

Lucy Catlyn, Principal Licensing Officer  
(01784 444295) l.catlyn@spelthorne.gov.uk or licensing@spelthorne.gov.uk  

 
Appendices: - 

 Appendix A – Proposed fees 

 Appendix B – Objections  
 

 
 

Page 9

mailto:l.catlyn@spelthorne.gov.uk
mailto:licensing@spelthorne.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix A 
 

Licence Fee 1 year fee 3 year fee 5 year fee 
New Driver Hackney Carriage (1 year)  £231.36   

New Driver Hackney Carriage (3 year)   £376.81  

New Driver Private Hire (1 year)  £231.36   

New Driver Private Hire (3 year)   £376.81  

Renewal Driver Hackney Carriage (1 year)  £193.19   

Renewal Driver Hackney Carriage (3 year)   £431.99  

Upgrade Private Hire Driver to Hackney Carriage Driver (Includes 1 

attempt at conditions test, 1 attempt at geographic test, vehicle check & processing & 

issuing driver and vehicle licence) 

£202.49    

Renewal Driver Private Hire (1 year)  £188.59   

Renewal Driver Private Hire (3 year)   £391.27  

Vehicle Hackney Carriage  £242.72   

Vehicle Private Hire  £239.76   

Change of Vehicle £167.88    

Discounted PH/HC vehicle with wheelchair accessibility   £119.88 / £121.36   

Operators 1 year   £349.92   

Operators 5 year    £978.06 

Hackney Carriage Geographic Test & Retest £70.09    

Hackney Carriage Conditions Test & Retest £50.06    

Private Hire Geographic Test & Retest £50.06    

Private Hire Conditions Test & Retest £50.06    

English & Numeracy Test & Retest £30.04    

DBS  £47.50    

Cancellation of booked appointment fee £40.05    

Reissue of PH/HC driver or vehicle licence due to any other 
reason 

£25.04    

Replacement of plates £23.99    

 

P
age 11



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Appendix B 
 

 
Sent: 11 November 2022 16:21 
To: Licensing <licensing@spelthorne.gov.uk> 
Subject: [EXTERNAL] Re: Proposed new taxi and private hire licence fees to come into effect 
on 28 November 2022 
 
This message originated from outside your organization 

 
Dear Licencing,  
 
The last tariff change for taxi drivers by Spelthorne Licencing dept. was February 2015.  Yes 
almost 8 years ago!!  My understand is that 
one of your roles/duties is to review the tariffs and adjust in line with changing circumstances. 
Clearly you are not fulfilling your responsibilities, therefore how can you justify an increase for 
yourself.  
This would be the third or fourth rise for yourselves since our tariffs were changed!!!!  Totally 
outrageous!!!! 
 
Therefore, I unreservedly object to your requests to increase your charges.  Please address 
your responsibilities first.  It does not take a genius 
to realise the financial change in running a taxi vehicle and the increase in the cost of living 
over the past 8 year, to understand that the tariffs should have increased several times over 
the past 8 years, not to mention the virtual total loss of fares for drivers over the COVID 
period.       
 
I feel you have no excuse for not changing the tariffs since 2015, as this has been pointed out 
to you in writing many times by myself.  
 
Alternatively, perhaps you should refund all taxi drivers for not fulfilling your responsibilities!!! 
 
I look forward to your response, and perhaps a rebate for your negligence.  
 
Regards,  

 
Sent: 10 November 2022 22:18 
To: Licensing <licensing@spelthorne.gov.uk> 
Subject: [EXTERNAL] Formal Objection- For the attention of Lucy Catlyn 
 
This message originated from outside your organization 
 
Dear Lucy Catlyn, 
 
I am writing to you in response to the proposed new licensing fees for taxi and private hire 
commencing on the 28th November 2022. 
 
As a taxi driver and after a discussion with drivers in express cars and in the Staines taxi rank, 
I speak for both myself and my colleagues in my objection to this. 
 
We believe this new fee is in the best interests of the council only and completely disregards 
the financial effects this has on taxi drivers. I would like to raise the point that the council 
have not increased our taxi meter tariffs in this current climate where as a nation the cost of 
living has increased everywhere; the implications this has had on taxi drivers is more severe 
than it may seem as it is becoming harder and harder to cover costs everyday.  
 

Page 13

mailto:licensing@spelthorne.gov.uk
mailto:licensing@spelthorne.gov.uk


Appendix B 
 

Furthermore, as you may already know, there is no taxi sign for the main side of the Staines 
station, causing daily disputes between taxi drivers and public cars. This is a major source of 
stress for us as not only does it affect our work, but there have also been instances where 
police have gotten involved.  
 
There is also a lack of work- I would like to suggest that as the council is not giving us taxi 
jobs, joining a company like Uber would be a lot more beneficial for us.  
 
I would like to reiterate that taxi drivers like me are increasing in financial struggle everyday; 
the lack of response to issues such as the taxi sign by the council should be completely 
unacceptable. Reviewing these problems and creating solutions to these first will not only 
allow our service to run much more efficiently, but also cut out major sources of stress for 
both drivers and the council.  
 
I hope you can understand our points and reconsider this change. 
 
I look forward to hearing from you soon. 
 
Yours sincerely, 
 
 
 
Sent: 11 November 2022 21:40 
To: Licensing <licensing@spelthorne.gov.uk> 
Subject: [EXTERNAL] Re: Proposed new taxi and private hire licence fees to come into effect 
on 28 November 2022 
 
This message originated from outside your organization 

 
Dear Lucy Catlyn, 
 
I am writing to you in response to the proposed new licensing fees for taxi and private hire 
commencing on the 28th November 2022. 
 
As a taxi driver and after a discussion with drivers in express cars and in the Staines taxi rank, 
I speak for both myself and my colleagues in my objection to this. 
 
We believe this new fee is in the best interests of the council only and completely disregards 
the financial effects this has on taxi drivers. I would like to raise the point that the council 
have not increased our taxi meter tariffs in this current climate where as a nation the cost of 
living has increased everywhere; the implications this has had on taxi drivers is more severe 
than it may seem as it is becoming harder and harder to cover costs everyday.  
 
Furthermore, as you may already know, there is no taxi sign for the main side of the Staines 
station, causing daily disputes between taxi drivers and public cars. This is a major source of 
stress for us as not only does it affect our work, but there have also been instances where 
police have gotten involved.  
 
There is also a lack of work- I would like to suggest that as the council is not giving us taxi 
jobs, joining a company like Uber would be a lot more beneficial for us.  
 

Page 14

mailto:licensing@spelthorne.gov.uk


Appendix B 
 

I would like to reiterate that taxi drivers like me are increasing in financial struggle everyday; 
the lack of response to issues such as the taxi sign by the council should be completely 
unacceptable. Reviewing these problems and creating solutions to these first will not only 
allow our service to run much more efficiently, but also cut out major sources of stress for 
both drivers and the council.  
 
I hope you can understand our points and reconsider this change. 
 
I look forward to hearing from you soon. 
 
Yours sincerely, 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	4 Review and Setting of Fees & Charges for the Licensing of Hackney Carriages, Private Hire and Private Hire Operators
	Appendix A Proposed Fees
	Appendix B Objections


